

#### MINUTES NEW YORK STATE RACING AND WAGERING BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 21, 2010

A meeting of the New York State Racing and Wagering Board was held on Tuesday, September 21, 2010 at 11:00 a.m. at the Racing & Wagering Board's Schenectady Office located at 1 Broadway Center, Suite 600, Schenectady, New York.

The meeting was called to order at 11:07 a.m.

#### In Attendance Were:

John D. Sabini, Chairman Daniel D. Hogan, Member Charles J. Diamond, Member Ronald G. Ochrym, Executive Director Robert Feuerstein, General Counsel Joseph Lynch, Director of Racing Operations Thomas Casaregola, Director of Audits & Investigations Gail Pronti, Secretary to the Board

#### Also in Attendance Were:

Kenneth Council, Director of Administration Joseph Mahoney, NYSR&WB Stacy Harvey, NYSR&WB Rick Goodell, NYSR&WB Mark Stuart, NYSR&WB William Sekellick, NYSR&WB Kristen Buckley, NYSR&WB Vivian Davis, NYSR&WB James Googas, NYSR&WB James Crane, Crane Consulting Group Paul Post, Saratogian

#### **OPEN COMMENT PERIOD:**

Gail Pronti, Secretary to the Board, received e-mail comments from Jackson Leeds concerning the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation in relation to wagering on Easter Sunday. These are attached to the minutes.

A. The Board approved the minutes of the Board meeting held on July 22, 2010.

### **B.** ITEMS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED OR DEFERRED BY THE CHAIR

- BUFFALO RACEWAY IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.
- 2. On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Del Mar Thoroughbred Club, California from July 14 through September 8, 2010.
- 3. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park through September 6, 2010.
- 4. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the Delaware County Fair, Ohio from September 22 through September 23, 2010 and participation in the two Little Brown Jug Future Wagers pools on the year 2010 Little Brown Jug to be run on September 23, 2010 at the Delaware County Fair, Ohio.
- 5. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Buffalo Trotting Association Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
  - 1. The Los Angeles County Fair at Fairplex Park, California from September 9 through September 27, 2010
  - 2. Turfway Park LLC (Fall Meet), Kentucky from September 8 through October 3, 2010.
- 6. BUFFALO RACEWAY EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Buffalo Trotting Association, Inc. request to simulcast its standardbred racing programs for wagering purposes for the year 2010 to Interbets.com. associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Catskill Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation.

- 7. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Buffalo Trotting Association, Inc. request to simulcast its standardbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Bwin International Ltd., Gibraltar, a secondary site associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Global Wagering Solutions.
- CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB REQUEST TO OFFER \$10,000 SARATOGA BANKROLL HANDICAPPING CONTEST On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the July 20,

On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the July 20, 2010 application by the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to conduct a "\$10,000.00 Saratoga Bankroll" promotion from Friday August 6 through Sunday, September 5, 2010 on a Friday-Saturday-Sunday basis.

9. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – REQUEST TO OFFER FREE TWO-DOLLAR BETTING VOUCHERS

On August 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the August 4, 2010 application by the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to offer a free two-dollar voucher to the first fifty (50) patrons in attendance on the Thursdays of August 12, 19, 26, and September 2, 2010 at the BetMobile mobile branch location at the Capital Plaza in Albany, New York.

10. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Capital District Regional OTB Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.

- 11. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Capital District Regional OTB Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Indiana Downs (Harness Meet), Indiana from July 23 through November 9, 2010.
- 12. CAPITAL DISTRICT, CATSKILL, NASSAU, SUFFOLK AND WESTERN REGIONAL OTBS – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of the Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Red Mile, Kentucky from August 2 through October 23, 2010.
- 13. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of the Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland from August 1 through December 31, 2010.

- 14. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of the Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hoosier Park (Thoroughbred), Indiana from July 30 through October 24, 2010.
- 15. On August 18, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of the Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Remington Park, Oklahoma from August 19 through December 11, 2010.
- 16. On August 24, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of the Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Golden Gate Fields, California from August 25 through October 3, 2010.
- 17. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of the Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
  - 1. Kentucky Downs, LLC, Kentucky from September 11 through September 20, 2010
  - 2. Turfway Park LLC (Fall Meet), Kentucky from September 8 through October 3, 2010.
- 18. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of the Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the Los Angeles County Fair at Fairplex Park, California from September 9 through September 27, 2010.
- 19. On September 7, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of the Capital, Catskill, Nassau, Suffolk and Western Regional off-track betting corporations authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Zia Park, New Mexico from September 11 through December 7, 2010.
- 20. CATSKILL REGIONAL OTB IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Catskill OTB Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.

- 21. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Catskill OTB Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing a Players Reward Program and the acceptance of wagering via the internet and other electronic media and communications devices specifically approved by the Board in relation to races from Saratoga Raceway, New York.
- 22. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Catskill OTB Corporation, Capital District Regional OTB Corporation and Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Cal Expo, California through December 18, 2010.
- 23. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Catskill OTB Corporation, Capital District Regional OTB Corporation and Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Red Mile, Kentucky through October 23, 2010.
- 24. FINGER LAKES RACETRACK REQUEST TO CANCEL RACE DATE OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2010 FOR TRACK RESURFACING On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racetrack request to cancel the live race date of Thursday, September 16, 2010 in order to complete the resurfacing of the main track. It is understood that the management of Finger Lakes will determine with the horsemen a replacement date in 2010.
- 25. FINGER LAKES RACETRACK REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF JOCKEY APPRENTICESHIP – CHARLIE AMARO

On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an extension through July 11, 2010 of apprentice jockey Charlie Amaro for an additional nine (9) days due to an injury incurred while riding.

26. FINGER LAKES RACETRACK – REQUEST TO CONDUCT "CHARITY CUP" EVENT

On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racetrack request to conduct the \$30,000 Finger Lakes "Charity Cup" on Saturday, October 2, 2010.

- 27. **FINGER LAKES RACETRACK IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010** On July 15, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Del Mar Thoroughbred
- 28. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.

Club, California from July 21 through September 8, 2010.

- 29. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland from August 1 through December 31, 2010.
- 30. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hoosier Park (Thoroughbred), Indiana from July 30 through October 24, 2010.
- 31. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Golden Gate Fields (Pacific Racing Association), California from August 25 through October 3, 2010.
- 32. FINGER LAKES RACETRACK EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Ellis Park (with eleven [11] secondary sites), Kentucky during the year 2010.
- 33. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes through December 4, 2010 to Corpus Christi Greyhound Track, Texas.
- 34. On August 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racetrack request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Del Mar Thoroughbred Club, with thirty-eight (38) secondary sites, California on Mondays only (except September 6) through September 27, 2010.
- 35. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes for the year 2010 to the following additional secondary site, Races and Aces, St. Martinsville, Louisiana, associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Old Evangeline Downs, Louisiana.
- 36. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes for the year 2010 to <u>www.saratogabets.com</u>. associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Saratoga Gaming & Raceway.

37. MONTICELLO RACEWAY – REQUEST TO OFFER FOUR DAILY DOUBLES ON AUGUST 14, 2010 WITH TIOGA DOWNS On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Monticello Raceway request to conduct Daily Double Wagering on August 14, 2010 using the combinations of four (4) races specified at both Tioga Downs and Monticello Raceway. It is a condition of this approval that:

- Monticello Raceway will host the wagering
- Wagering will be governed by the applicable Daily Double rules contained in 9 NYCRR Part 4122
- Tioga Downs will inform its patrons that the Monticello Raceway takeout rate is applicable.

#### 38. MONTICELLO RACEWAY – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Del Mar Thoroughbred Club, California from July 14 through September 8, 2010.

- 39. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Red Mile, Kentucky from August 15 through October 23, 2010.
- 40. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Meadows, Pennsylvania through December 31, 2010.
- 41. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hoosier Park, Indiana from July 30 through October 24, 2010.
- 42. On August 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Delaware County Fair, Ohio from September 21 through September 23, 2010.
- 43. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Turfway Park LLC (Fall Meet), Kentucky from September 8 through October 3, 2010.
- 44. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Colonial Downs L.P. (Harness Meet), Virginia from September 17 through November 6, 2010.
- 45. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland through December 31, 2010.

- 46. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Monticello Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Northville Racing Corporation, Michigan from September 23 through November 20, 2010.
- 47. **MONTICELLO RACEWAY EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010** On August 3, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Monticello Raceway Mgmt, Inc. request to simulcast its standardbred racing programs for wagering purposes for the year 2010 to saratogabets.com. associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Saratoga Gaming & Raceway.
- 48. On August 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Monticello Raceway request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Northville Racing Corporation, Michigan for the year 2010.
- 49. On August 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Monticello Raceway request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Horse Racing New Brunswick Inc. (with three [3] secondary sites), New Brunswick, Canada through December 31, 2010.
- 50. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB REQUEST TO OFFER HANDICAPPING CHAMPIONSHIP AT RACE PALACE On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation request to conduct the Palace Crown Summer Handicapping championship at the Race Palace Teletheater on Sunday, August 22, 2010.

### 51. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB – REQUEST TO OFFER VIP RECEPTION TO BET NOW PLAYERS CLUB

On July 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the July 20, 2010 request of the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to conduct the specified promotion, V.I.P. Reception for Bet Now NY Player's Club Members and drawing, on Friday, August 6, 2010 at the Race Palace Teletheater.

- 52. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.
- 53. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation and Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hazel Park, Michigan through December 31, 2010.
- 54. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, and Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Cal-Expo, California through December 18, 2010.

- 55. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, Capital District Off-Track Betting Corporation, Catskill Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation and Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Retama Park, Texas from September 3 through October 23, 2010.
- 56. On September 2, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation and Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the Delaware County Fair, Ohio on September 21, 22 and 23, 2010.

#### 57. NEW YORK CITY OTB – REQUEST TO CLOSE TEN (10) BRANCHES – BOROUGHS OF NEW YORK CITY

On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation request dated July 20, 2010 to amend its plan of operation to close ten (10) branches. These branches are:

Branch #20, located at 2145 White Plains Road, Bronx, effective at the close of business on July 26<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

Branch #031, located at 495 Fifth Avenue, Brooklyn, effective at the close of business on August 2<sup>nd</sup>, 2010.

Branch #169, located at 714 Third Avenue, New York (Manhattan), effective at the close of business on August 7<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

Branch #171, located at 200 Varick Street, New York (Manhattan), effective at the close of business on August 6<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

Branch #039, located at 1367 Rockaway Parkway, Brooklyn, effective at the close of business on September 6<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

Branch #117, located at 1204 Neptune Avenue, Brooklyn, effective at the close of business on September 6<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

Branch #002, located at 1612 East 16<sup>th</sup> Street, Brooklyn, effective at the close of business on September 6<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

Branch #100, located at 4013 13<sup>th</sup> Avenue, Brooklyn, effective at the close of business on September 6<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

Branch #112, located at 25-14 Broadway, Queens, effective at the close of business on September 6<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

Branch #136, located at 991 Second Ave. (street level), New York (Manhattan), effective at the close of business on September 6<sup>th</sup>, 2010.

The Board deferred action on the request to close Branch # 236 located at 991 2<sup>nd</sup> Avenue, New York, NY.

#### 58. NEW YORK CITY OTB – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Red Mile, Kentucky from August 2 through October 23, 2010.

- 59. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.
- 60. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland from August 1 through December 31, 2010.
- 61. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hoosier Park (Thoroughbred), Indiana from July 30 through October 24, 2010.
- 62. On August 18, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Remington Park, Oklahoma from August 19 through December 11, 2010.
- 63. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Retama Park, Texas from September 3 through October 23, 2010.
- 64. On August 24, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Golden Gate Fields, California from August 25 through October 3, 2010.
- 65. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the Los Angeles County Fair at Fairplex Park, California from September 9 through September 27, 2010.
- 66. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Delaware County Fair, Ohio from September 19 through September 23, 2010.
- 67. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
  - 1. Kentucky Downs, LLC, Kentucky from September 11 through September 20, 2010
  - 2. Turfway Park LLC (Fall Meet), Kentucky from September 8 thru October 3, 2010.

- 68. On September 7, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the plan of operation of New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Zia Park, New Mexico runs from September 11 through December 7, 2010.
- 69. NYRA REQUEST TO OFFER PROMOTIONS FOR 2010 SARATOGA MEET On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the July 5, 2010 New York Racing Association request as clarified and received on July 14 & July 21 to conduct the August 4, 2010 "Celebrity Challenge," the August 19, 2010 Serling Syndicate, and the September 1, 2010 Win Wager.

#### 70. NYRA – REQUEST TO OFFER TWO-DAY DAILY DOUBLE

On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the August 13, 2010 New York Racing Association request to conduct a two-day daily double wager on the Travers Stakes and the Personal Ensign Invitational. The Travers Stakes will be the twelfth (12<sup>th</sup>) race of thirteen scheduled races on the Saturday August 28, 2010 card. The Personal Ensign Invitational will be the ninth (9<sup>th</sup>) race of ten scheduled races on the Sunday, August 29, 2010 card.

### 71. NYRA – REQUEST TO OFFER LATE PICK-FOUR WAGERING POOL FOR 2010 BELMONT PARK FALL MEET

On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the August 21, 2010 New York Racing Association request to offer the following guaranteed wagering pools during the 2010 Belmont Park Fall race meeting:

- 1. A \$300,000 guaranteed late Pick-4 on every Saturday (with the exception of October 2, 2010).
- 2. A \$500,000 guaranteed graded Stakes Pick 4 on Races 7-10 on Saturday, October 2, 2010 (when the first race post-time will be 12:30 p.m.).

### 72. NYRA – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland from August 1 through December 31, 2010.

- 73. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hoosier Park (Thoroughbred), Indiana from July 30 through October 24, 2010.
- 74. On August 18, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Remington Park, Oklahoma from August 19 through December 11, 2010.

- 75. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Retama Park, Texas from September 3 through October 23, 2010.
- 76. On August 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the Los Angeles County Fair at Fairplex Park, California from September 9 through September 27, 2010.
- 77. On August 24, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Golden Gate Fields, California from August 25 through October 3, 2010.
- 78. On August 25, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
  - 1. Kentucky Downs, LLC, Kentucky from September 11 through September 20, 2010
  - 2. Turfway Park LLC (Fall Meet), Kentucky from September 8 through October 3, 2010.
- 79. On September 7, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York Racing Association, Inc. simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Zia Park, New Mexico from September 11 through December 7, 2010.

#### 80. NYRA - EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast the Alabama Stakes only for separate pool wagering purposes to PMU, France on August 21, 2010.

- 81. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Corpus Christi Greyhound Park, Texas through December 31, 2010.
- 82. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Elite Turf Club N.V., Curacao, a secondary site associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Las Vegas Dissemination Company (LVDC), Nevada from July 23 through December 31, 2010.
- 83. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing program for wagering purposes to Bwin International Ltd., Gibraltar, a secondary site associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Global Wagering Solutions.

- 84. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing programs for wagering purposes to Fairplex Park (with thirty nine [39] secondary sites), California from September 9 through September 27, 2010.
- 85. On August 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York Racing Association, Inc. request to simulcast its thoroughbred racing program for wagering purposes for the year 2010 to <u>www.saratogabets.com</u>, associated with Saratoga Gaming and Raceway.

# 86. SARATOGA HARNESS – REQUEST TO CHANGE POST- TIME ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2010

On July 15, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the July 13, 2010 request of Saratoga Gaming and Raceway to change the first race post-time from 12:45 p.m. to 1:30 p.m. for the Saturday, September 25, 2010 program.

#### 87. SARATOGA HARNESS – REQUEST TO OFFER BET \$50 - GET \$25 PROMOTION

On July 15, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the June 14, 2010 application of Saratoga Gaming and Raceway to conduct a "Saratoga Bet \$50.00 – Get \$25.00" promotion for a period of thirty (30) days.

#### 88. SARATOGA HARNESS - IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.

- 89. On July 21, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Del Mar Thoroughbred Club, California from July 21 through September 8, 2010.
- 90. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Saratoga Racecourse, New York from July 23 through September 6, 2010.
- 91. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
  - 1. The Downs at Albuquerque, New Mexico from August 14 through November 14, 2010
  - 2. Assiniboia Downs, Manitoba, Canada through September 25, 2010

- 3. Grand River Racing, Ontario, Canada through October 25, 2010
- 4. Kawartha Downs, Ontario, Canada through October 25, 2010
- 5. Northlands Park, Alberta, Canada through December 19, 2010
- 6. Ajax Downs, Ontario, Canada through October 17, 2010.
- 92. On August 3, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:
  - 1. Flamboro Downs Limited, Ontario, Canada through December 31, 2010
  - 2. Georgian Downs Limited, Ontario, Canada through December 31, 2010.
- 93. On August 3, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Red Mile, Kentucky from August 15 through October 23, 2010.
- 94. On August 4, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hoosier Park (Thoroughbred), Indiana through October 24, 2010.
- 95. On August 18, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Remington Park from August 19 through December 11, 2010.
- 96. On August 18, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the acceptance of wagering via the internet and other electronic media and communications devices specifically approved by the Board from:
  - 1. Ellis Park, Kentucky
  - 2. Remington Park, Oklahoma
  - 3. The Red Mile, Kentucky.
- 97. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Wyvern International, LTD, Australia for the remainder of 2010.
- 98. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Delaware County Fair, Ohio from September 21 through September 23, 2010.

- 99. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Turfway Park LLC (Fall Meet), Kentucky from September 8 through October 3, 2010.
- 100. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the acceptance of wagering via the internet and other electronic media and communications devices specifically approved by the Board from Freehold Raceway, New Jersey.
- 101. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Hastings Racecourse, British Columbia, Canada for the remainder of 2010.
- 102. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Retama Park, Texas from September 3 through October 23, 2010.
- 103. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the acceptance of wagering via the internet and other electronic media and communications devices specifically approved by the Board from:
  - 1. Finger Lakes Racing Association, Inc.
  - 2. Penn National Gaming (Penn National/Charles Town).
- 104. On August 24, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Rideau Carlton Raceway, Ontario, Canada for the remainder of 2010.
- 105. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Kentucky Downs, LLC, Kentucky from September 11 through September 20, 2010.
- 106. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the acceptance of wagering via the internet and other electronic media and communications devices specifically approved by the Board from The New York Racing Association, Inc., New York.

- 107. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Colonial Downs L.P. (Harness Meet), Virginia from September 17 through November 6, 2010.
- 108. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Scarborough Downs, Maine for the remainder of 2010.
- 109. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Northville Racing Corporation, Michigan from September 23 through November 20, 2010.
- 110. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Fort Erie Race Track, Ontario, Canada for the remainder of 2010.
- 111. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the acceptance of wagering via the internet and other electronic media and communications devices specifically approved by the Board from:
  - 1. Assiniboia Downs, Manitoba, Canada
  - 2. Kawartha Downs, Ontario, Canada
  - 3. Ajax Downs, Ontario, Canada.
- 112. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from CalExpo Harness Racing, California through December 18, 2010.
- 113. On September 7, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Zia Park, New Mexico from September 11 through December 7, 2010.
- 114. SARATOGA HARNESS EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Saratoga Harness Racing, Inc. request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Bwin International Ltd., Gibraltar, a secondary site associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Global Wagering Solutions.

- 115. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Saratoga Gaming and Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the acceptance of wagering via the internet and other electronic media and communications devices specifically approved by the Board from:
  - 1. Buffalo Trotting Association
  - 2. Monticello Raceway
  - 3. Tioga Downs
  - 4. Vernon Downs
  - 5. Yonkers Raceway
  - 6. Beulah Park
  - 7. Colonial Downs
  - 8. Delaware Racing Association
  - 9. Harrington Raceway
  - 10. Hawthorne Racecourse
  - 11. Hazel Park
  - 12. Indiana Downs
  - 13. The Meadowlands
  - 14. Monmouth Park
  - 15. Northfield Park
  - 16. Philadelphia Park
  - 17. Plainridge Racecourse
  - 18. Pocono Downs
  - 19. Pompano Park
  - 20. Suffolk Downs
  - 21. Sunland Park
  - 22. Woodbine Entertainment Group.
- 116. On August 3, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Saratoga Gaming & Raceway request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Horse Racing New Brunswick (with three secondary sites), Canada through December 12, 2010.
- 117. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Saratoga Gaming & Raceway request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Fort Erie Racetrack (with three secondary sites), Ontario, Canada through December 12, 2010.
- 118. SUFFOLK REGIONAL OTB OCTOBER 2010 HANDICAPPING CONTEST

On August 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the August 13, 2010 Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation request to conduct a Handicapping Contest at the Racing Forum, 690 Motor Parkway, Hauppauge, N.Y. 11788 on Saturday, October 16, 2010.

- 119. SUFFOLK REGIONAL OTB IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On September 2, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Suffolk Regional OTB Corporation simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Saratoga Harness Racing, Inc., New York through December 31, 2010.
- 120. TIOGA DOWNS REQUEST TO OFFER 2010 DRIVER'S CHALLENGE On August 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the August 4, 2010 request of Tioga Downs to conduct the 2010 Drivers' Challenge specified in the application to the Board.
- 121. TIOGA DOWNS REQUEST TO ADD DAY OF RACING SEPTEMBER 8, 2010 On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to conduct an additional day of live racing on Wednesday, September 8, 2010 with a first post-time of 1:30 p.m.
- 122. TIOGA DOWNS DISCONTINUATION OF PICK-SIX WAGER AFTER SEPTEMBER 5, 2010

On September 2, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to discontinue the Pick Six wager for Sunday, September 5, 2010, which is the last Sunday of the Tioga Downs race meeting for 2010.

#### 123. TIOGA DOWNS - IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.

- 124. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the Delaware County Fair, Ohio from September 21 through September 23, 2010 and participation in the two Little Brown Jug Future Wagers pools on the year 2010 Little Brown Jug to be run on September 23, 2010 at the Delaware County Fair, Ohio.
- 125. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Del Mar Thoroughbred Club, California through September 8, 2010.
- 126. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Indiana Downs (Harness Meet), Indiana through November 9, 2010.

- 127. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Red Mile, Kentucky from August 15 through October 23, 2010.
- 128. On August 24, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Golden Gate Fields, California from August 25 through October 3, 2010.
- 129. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Colonial Downs L.P. (Harness Meet), Virginia from September 17 through November 6, 2010.
- 130. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland through December 31, 2010.
- 131. On September 2, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Tioga Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland through December 31, 2010.

#### 132. TIOGA DOWNS - EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Bwin International Ltd., Gibraltar, a secondary site associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Global Wagering Solutions.

- 133. On August 3, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Tioga Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Northville Racing Corp., Michigan through September 11, 2010.
- 134. VERNON DOWNS IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.
- 135. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the Delaware County Fair, Ohio from September 21 through September 23, 2010 and participation in the two Little Brown Jug Future Wagers pools on the year 2010 Little Brown Jug to be run on September 23, 2010 at the Delaware County Fair, Ohio.

- 136. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Del Mar Thoroughbred Club, California through September 8, 2010.
- 137. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Red Mile, Kentucky from August 15 through October 23, 2010.
- 138. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Indiana Downs (Harness Meet), Indiana through November 9, 2010.
- 139. On August 24, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Golden Gate Fields, California from August 25 through October 3, 2010.
- 140. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Colonial Downs L.P. (Harness Meet), Virginia from September 17 through November 6, 2010.
- 141. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland through December 31, 2010.
- 142. On September 2, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Vernon Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland through December 31, 2010.
- 143. VERNON DOWNS EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to Bwin International Ltd., Gibraltar, a secondary site associated with the previously approved simulcasts to Global Wagering Solutions.

# 144. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB/BATAVIA DOWNS – IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation/Batavia Downs simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from The Delaware County Fair, Ohio on September 22 (Juggette) and September 23 (Little Brown Jug), 2010 only.

145. On September 1, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved amendments to the plans of operation of Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation/Batavia Downs for itself and as agent for Capital District Off-Track Betting Corporation, Catskill Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation and Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Colonial Downs L.P. (Harness Meet), Virginia from September 17 through November 6, 2010.

# 146. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB/BATAVIA DOWNS – EXPORT TO VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010

On July 15, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Batavia Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes from July 26 through December 4, 2010 to:

- 1. Finger Lakes Racing Association., New York
- 2. Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York
- 3. Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York.
- 147. On July 15, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Batavia Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Day at The Track, Idaho from July 26 through December 4, 2010.
- 148. On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Batavia Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing programs for wagering purposes from July 26 through December 4, 2010 to:
  - 1. Colonial Downs, Virginia
  - 2. Freehold Raceway, New Jersey
  - 3. Harrington Raceway, Delaware
  - 4. Hazel Park, Michigan
  - 5. The Meadows, Pennsylvania
  - 6. Northville Racing Corporation, Michigan
  - 7. The Red Mile, Kentucky
  - 8. Rockingham Park, New Hampshire.
- 149. On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Batavia Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes from July 26 through December 4, 2010 to:
  - 1. Capital District Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York
  - 2. Catskill Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York
  - 3. Monticello Raceway, New York
  - 4. Vernon Downs, New York
  - 5. Tioga Downs, New York
  - 6. Buffalo Raceway, New York
  - 7. Saratoga Harness, New York
  - 8. Yonkers Raceway, New York.

- 150. On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Batavia Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes from July 26 through December 4, 2010 to:
  - 1. Plainridge Racecourse, Massachusetts
  - 2. Ocean Downs (with one [1] secondary site), Maryland
  - 3. Lewiston Raceways (with four [4] secondary sites), Maine
  - 4. Sunland Park, New Mexico
  - 5. Northfield Park, Ohio
  - 6. Pocono Downs (with four [4] secondary sites), Pennsylvania.
- 151. On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Western Regional OTB/Batavia Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes from July 26 through December 4, 2010 to New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation, New York.
- 152. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Batavia Downs request to simulcast its harness racing programs for wagering purposes to Am West Entertainment LLC (with four [4] secondary sites), Kentucky from July 26 through December 4, 2010.
- 153. On August 5, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Batavia Downs request to simulcast its standardbred racing program for wagering purposes to eBet Technologies, Inc. (with five [5] related sites), Oregon for the year 2010.

# 154. YONKERS RACEWAY – REQUEST TO OFFER "BACK TO THE TRACK" PROMOTION

On August 11, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the August 10, 2010 Yonkers Raceway request to give out nine dinners for two at the Empire Terrace Dining Room on Saturday, August 13, 2010.

- 155. YONKERS RACEWAY IMPORT OF VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN 2010 On July 16, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Batavia Downs, New York from July 26 through December 4, 2010.
- 156. On July 21, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Del Mar Thoroughbred Club, California from July 21 through September 8, 2010.
- 157. On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from:

- 1. Hoosier Park (Thoroughbred), Indiana from July 30 through October 24, 2010
- 2. Laurel Park, Maryland from August 1 through December 31, 2010.
- 158. On August 18, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Remington Park, Oklahoma from August 19 through December 11, 2010.
- 159. On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Timonium, Maryland from August 27 through September 6, 2010.
- 160. On August 24, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Golden Gate Fields (Pacific Racing Association), California from August 25 through October 3, 2010.
- 161. On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Colonial Downs L.P. (Harness Meet), Virginia from September 17 through November 6, 2010.
- 162. On September 2, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Laurel Park, Maryland through December 31, 2010.
- 163. On September 2, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from the Los Angeles County Fair at Fairplex Park, California from September 9 through September 27, 2010.
- 164. On September 7, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Yonkers Raceway simulcast plan of operation authorizing the simulcast for wagering purposes of races from Turfway Park LLC (Fall Meet), Kentucky from September 8 through October 3, 2010.

#### C. ITEMS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED, DENIED OR DEFERRED BY THE BOARD

 NYRA – REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF LICENSE EXEMPTION TO SEASONAL EMPLOYEES FOR SARATOGA RACE MEET On July 20, 2010, pursuant to Board Rule 4002.1(b)(2), the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the July 17, 2010 request of The New York Racing Association, Inc. for a licensing exemption for certain temporary employees at the 2010 Saratoga Race Course meeting. 2. FINGER LAKES RACETRACK – REQUEST TO INSTALL NEW POWER SERVICE TO EXPANSION PROJECT OF VINEYARD BUFFET On July 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the installation of a new power service for expansion of the Vineyard Buffet pursuant to Section 246 of the New York State Racing and Wagering, Pari-Mutuel Wagering and Breeding Law.

#### 3. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB – REQUEST TO APPOINT NEW PRESIDENT/ GENERAL MANAGER - CAIRO

On July 20, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation plan of operation to reflect the appointment of Joseph G. Cairo, Jr. as the President of the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation.

#### 4. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – REQUEST TO OPERATE MOBILE BRANCH IN ALBANY

On July 21, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the July 16, 2010 request from Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to operate a Mobile Branch at the corner of Swan Street and Washington Avenue in the City of Albany each Monday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday of the New York Racing Association's Saratoga meet July 23 through September 6, 2010, between the hours of 11:00 AM and 5:00 PM.

### 5. NYRA – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF SARATOGA RACECOURSE OFF-TRACK STABLES

On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the application of the New York Racing Association dated July 21, 2010, and clarified on July 22, 2010, for authorization to deem eight (8) specified off-premises/properties to be NYRA on-track premises for the purposes of compliance with Board rules and requirements, including 4043.2(b)(6). This written approval is effective from July 23, 2010 through September 6, 2010 and is limited to the following eight (8) properties in Saratoga Springs on which seventeen (17) specific trainers have submitted written consents to this arrangement, including recognition of the fact that the premises will be subject to the Rules of the Board:

- 1. Bond Barn,44 Gridley
- 2. Disanto Barn, 37 Gridley
- 3. Lerman Barn, 39 Gridley
- 4. Mcpeek Barn, 144 Jefferson (corner of Gridley and Jefferson)
- 5. Miller Barn, 13 Bowman
- 6. Godolphin Barns, 36 Nelson
- 7. Shadwell Barn, 360 Caroline
- 8. Dr. Barnes Barn, Saratoga Equine Veterinary Hospital at Hunters' Hollow, Hening Rd. and Morrissey Ln.

This approval is conditioned on the following:

- Compliance with appropriate Board occupational license requirements
- Board staff shall have unfettered access to the premises, including the right to search
- NYRA shall provide appropriate security
- NYRA shall provide a copy of this letter to each trainer who has submitted the referenced written consents.

#### 6. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB – NEW MEMBER TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS -MAZUR

On July 22, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation request to amend its plan of operation to reflect the appointment of Beverly Ann Mazur as the Erie County representative to the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation Board.

#### 7. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB – REQUEST TO AMEND PLAN OF OPERATIONS – SIEBERT AS CHAIR & TUOHEY AS VICE CHAIR On July 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation request to amend its plan of operation to reflect the election of Richard Siebert as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Marcia Tuohey as the Vice Chairperson.

# 8. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB – APPROVAL OF NEW GENERAL COUNSEL & SECRETARY TO THE CORPORATION - WALSH

On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the request of the Nassau Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to amend its plan of operation to reflect the appointment of Arthur T. Walsh as the General Counsel and Secretary of the Corporation.

#### 9. VERNON DOWNS – REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO BEGIN PHASE 1 OF HOTEL & EVENTS CALENDAR EXPANSION PROJECT

On July 27, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Vernon Downs request for a permit pursuant to Section 322 of the New York State Racing, Pari-Mutuel Wagering and Breeding Law for site work and foundation work for Phase I of the hotel expansion project as specified in the Town of Vernon building permit and engineering drawings submitted to the Board.

### 10. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB – NEW FAST TRACK – J.T. BULLITS - PORT WASHINGTON, NY

On August 3, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Nassau Downs Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation request to amend its simulcast plan of operation authorizing the operation of simulcasting and wagering at J. T. Bullitts located at 611 Port Washington Boulevard in Port Washington, New York 11050.

# 11. NASSAU REGIONAL OTB – CONVERT BRANCH TO FAST TRACK – POTTER'S PUB – EAST MEADOW, NY

On August 3, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Nassau Downs Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation request to amend its simulcast plan of operation authorizing the operation of the existing Potter's Pub restaurant branch as a Fast Track location. Potter's Pub is located at 2405 Hempstead Turnpike in East Meadow, New York.

#### 12. YONKERS RACEWAY - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF PEACE OFFICERS

On August 4, 2010, pursuant to Section 312 of the Racing, Pari-Mutuel Wagering and Breeding Law, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board granted the Yonkers Racing Corporation request to approve the appointment of the individuals listed below as special policemen within and around the grounds of Yonkers Raceway. These special policemen may exercise the powers of peace officers as authorized by and in accordance with Section 312 of the Racing, Pari-Mutuel Wagering and Breeding Law and Section 2.20 of the Criminal Procedure Law.

The following five (5) individuals were approved:

- 1. Robert Alexander
- 2. Mitchell Hendricks
- 3. Roberto Toro
- 4. Greg Dorlini
- 5. Gidget Jiminez.

#### 13. IN THE MATTER OF ROBERT V. LIZARDO

On August 9, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of Hearing Officer Clemente J. Parente and revoked the thoroughbred owner's license of Robert V. Lizardo based upon the impact of the cited criminal conviction, his failure to appear as directed, and his financial irresponsibility.

#### 14. NEW YORK CITY OTB – NEW MEMBER TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS -DAVIDSON

On August 10, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation plan of operation to reflect the appointment of Peter Warner Davidson as a Member of the Board of Directors by Governor Paterson.

#### 15. NEW YORK CITY OTB – REQUEST FOR 30-DAY EXTENSION ON REMAINING THREE QUARTERLY REPORTS FOR 2010

On August 10, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the New York City Off-Track Betting Corporation request for a 30-day extension to file 3<sup>rd</sup>, and 4<sup>th</sup> quarter 2010 uniform quarterly reports only. The extension request for the 2<sup>nd</sup> quarter uniform quarterly report was denied since this request was made after the due date.

#### 16. EMERGENGY RULEMAKING – PRE-RACE DETENTION ORDERS IN HARNESS RACING

On August 12, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an emergency rulemaking to amend Section 4120.14 of the Board's Harness Rules. This amendment would authorize the Board to suspend pre-race detention orders in cases where a court order has caused the order to apply to innocent third-party owners. The rulemaking amended the Pre-race Detention Rule to make the orders applicable to owners, and not the horses.

#### 17. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB – REQUEST TO OPEN NEW E-Z BET – HEENAN'S PUB – FREDONIA, NY

On August 19, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Western Regional OTB request to open an EZ Bet facility at the Heenan's Pub which is located at 39 East Main Street in the Village of Fredonia in the County of Chautauqua.

#### 18. IN THE MATTER OF ANDRES GRULLON

On August 26, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of Hearing Officer Clemente J. Parente that the thoroughbred exercise rider license of Andre Grullon be suspended until he successfully completes a drug rehabilitation program.

#### 19. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – NEW DIRECTOR FOR FULTON COUNTY - ROTH

On August 30, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved an amendment to the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation plan of operation to reflect the appointment of Robert A. Roth as the director from Fulton County. Mr. Roth replaces Charles Potter.

#### 20. WESTERN REGIONAL OTB/BATAVIA DOWNS – REQUEST TO SIMULCAST LIVE HARNESS RACES ON WGRZ –TV/UNIVERSAL SPORTS – TIME WARNER BUFFALO CHANNEL 114

On September 2, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the request by the Western Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation to conduct in-home simulcasting through its contract with WGRF-TV/Universal Sports. Approval was granted for the year 2010 dates specified in the contract.

#### D. ITEMS TO BE APPROVED, DENIED OR DEFERRED BY THE BOARD

### 1. MONTICELLO RACEWAY – 2010 TRACK & SIMULCAST LICENSE APPLICATIONS

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board assigned to Monticello Raceway the race dates requested for the months of October, November and December of 2010.

2. **VERNON DOWNS – 2010 TRACK & SIMULCAST LICENSE APPLICATIONS** The New York State Racing and Wagering Board assigned the amended race dates requested for the remainder of the 2010 season through November 20, 2010.

On September 21, 2010, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board finalized the assignment of the year 2010 race dates for the conduct of pari-mutuel harness racing at American Racing – Vernon Downs, Inc.

The Board certified that for 2010, American Racing – Vernon Downs, Inc. has been assigned fewer that the required minimum number of pari-mutuel races and pari-mutuel programs but that this assignment was for good cause due to factors beyond the control of the entity or because it would have been uneconomical or impractical for the corporation to be assigned the prescribed number.

# 3. NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULEMAKING – CELL PHONES IN PADDOCK AREA

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved a proposal to add a new Section 4104.14 (Use of cellular telephones and electronic communication devices) to the harness rules to allow the limited use of cellular telephones in the paddock area and receiving barn of a harness race track. The proposed rule contains a one-year expiration provision.

### 4. NOTICE OF CONSENSUS RULEMAKING – RAFFLE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION & LICENSING AND INCREASE ANNUAL CAP ON PRIZES

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the submission to the Department of State of a Consensus Rulemaking to conform Rules 5620.22 and 5622.12 to the licensing and registration provisions of Sections 189 and 190-a of the General Municipal Law. This rule is necessary to implement the provisions of Chapter 678 of the laws of 2004 and Chapter 302 of the laws of 2010. Chapter 678 of 2004 eliminated the requirement that authorized organizations obtain Board identification numbers and municipal licenses when conducting raffles in which the proceeds will not meet or exceed \$5,000 for a single raffle, or \$20,000 for a series of raffles conducted during a calendar year. Chapter 302 of the laws of 2010 increased the aggregate raffle prize amount for a license period from \$100,000 to \$500,000.

# 5. RULE ADOPTION – AMENDMENT TO HARNESS RULE 4108.8 NEW YORK PREFERENCE

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the adoption of an amendment to existing Rule 4108.8 to authorize New York State tracks to write condition or claiming races, as and when appropriate, that restrict entries to horses that have competed in New York State for the majority of their most recent starts provided that the track must card at least one equivalent race (per restricted race) without the restriction on the same or next race date.

# 6. RULE ADOPTION – AMENDMENT TO THOROUGHBRED RULE 4035.9 – USE OF RIDING CROPS

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the adoption of an amendment to existing Rule 4035.9, which revises the equipment rule for thoroughbred whips, to replace it with a padded riding crop.

#### 7. 5-YEAR RULE REVIEW ITEMS 2004 AND 1999

Pursuant to Section 207 of the State Administrative Procedure Act, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the continuance of the nine rules adopted in calendar years 1999 and 2004 without modification as there have been no changes in public policy or regulatory circumstances that would warrant modification to the rules.

#### 8. 5-YEAR RULE REVIEW ITEMS 2005 AND 2000

Pursuant to Section 207 of the State Administrative Procedure Act, the New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the continuance of the nine rules adopted in calendar years 2000 and 2005 without modification as there have been no changes in public policy or regulatory circumstances that would warrant modification to the rules.

#### 9. SUFFOLK REGIONAL OTB – NEW QWIK BET – STRANO PUB, INC. (JIMMY'S) – PATCHOGUE, NY

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Suffolk Regional Off-Track Betting Corporation request to amend its plan of operation to include the operation of a Qwik Bet simulcast facility in the Strano Pub, Inc. d/b/a Jimmy's, located at 350-5 East Main Street in Patchogue, N.Y.11772 (Suffolk County).

#### 10. CAPITAL DISTRICT REGIONAL OTB – NEW OWNERS OF EZ-BET – O'TOOLE'S RESTAURANT PUB - ALBANY

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board approved the Capital District Regional Off-Track Betting request to amend its plan of operation authorizing the operation of an EZ-Bet simulcast facility in the Hawkin's Restaurant of Albany, Inc. d/b/a O'Toole's Restaurant Pub located in Kohl's Plaza at 1814 Central Avenue in Albany, N.Y. 12205 (Albany County).

#### 11. IN THE MATTER OF JORGE BLANCO

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of Hearing Officer Clemente J. Parente and revoked the thoroughbred groom's license Jorge Blanco based upon charges relating to his involvement in an assault and robbery incident on the premises of Belmont Park on March 6, 2010.

#### 12. IN THE MATTER OF JOSSUE ESPARZA

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of Hearing Officer Clemente J. Parente and revoked the thoroughbred groom's license of Jossue Esparza based upon charges relating to his involvement in an assault and robbery incident on the premises of Belmont Park on March 6, 2010.

#### 13. IN THE MATTER OF ROBERT DUNLAP

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of Hearing Officer Clemente J. Parente and refused a license to harness racing groom applicant Robert Dunlap until such time as he submits proof of treatment for substance abuse and compliance with recommended treatment.

#### 14. IN THE MATTER OF FRANK RONDON

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of Hearing Officer Clemente J. Parente and revoked the thoroughbred racing stable employee's license of Frank Rondon due to the report of a controlled substances present in a sample collected from him on April 15, 2010 on the grounds of a racetrack and his subsequent failure to comply with treatment-related conditions set forth in a May 5, 2010 Voluntary Surrender Agreement.

#### 15. IN THE MATTER OF SALBADOR CEBALLOS

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of Hearing Officer Clemente J. Parente and suspended the thoroughbred groom's license of Salbador Ceballos until such time as he provides proof that the pending criminal charges have been resolved in his favor or that his license be revoked if he is convicted of any of the pending charges.

#### 16. IN THE MATTER OF DAVID HONGACH

The New York State Racing and Wagering Board upheld the recommendation of Hearing Officer Clemente J. Parente and refused to issue a license to harness racing groom applicant David Hongach based upon the finding that his experience, character and general fitness are such that his participation in racing would inconsistent with the public interest, convenience or necessity or with the best interests of racing generally. Mr. Hongach will be permitted to reapply for a license as a groom after three months provided no further derogatory information is received.

#### E. ITEMS FOR BOARD INFORMATION/DISCUSSION

#### 1. INDIAN GAMING/LICENSING STATISTICS

Licensing statistics for June 1, 2010 through June 30, 2010. Also included were the certifications for Oneida, Mohawk, Seneca Allegany, Seneca Buffalo and Seneca Niagara.

#### 2. INDIAN GAMING/LICENSING STATISTICS

Licensing statistics for July 1, 2010 through July 31, 2010. Also included were the certifications for Oneida, Mohawk, Seneca Allegany, Seneca Buffalo and Seneca Niagara.

 NYRA – NOTICE OF INTENT TO CONDUCT RACING AT AQUEDUCT DURING WINTER OF 2010 – 2011 On August 18, 2010, The New York State Racing and Wagering Board acknowledged receipt of a letter dated August 5, 2010 from The New York Racing Association, Inc. regarding NYRA's intention to conduct a race meeting at Aqueduct Racetrack during the months of December 2010, January 2011, February 2011, March 2011 and April 2011, in order to have the pari-mutuel tax rate set forth in subsection (a) of Section 238.1(d) be effective.

#### 4. LICENSING/CURRENT LICENSE COUNT

The current racing licensing counts as of July 31, 2010 since January 1, 2010 were as follows: total receipts 10998 and total licenses 8210 for the year 2010.

#### 5. GAMES OF CHANCE/BINGO REGISTRATION NUMBERS

List of Games of Chance and Bingo Registration Numbers authorized/denied by the Charitable Gaming Unit from July 3, 2010 thru August 23, 2010.

### 6. GAMES OF CHANCE/BELL JAR TICKETS

List of bell jar tickets authorized/denied by the Charitable Gaming Unit between July 1, 2010 and July 31, 2010.

### 7. 2010 LICENSED SUPPLIERS

There were no licenses for the time period of August 1 through August 31, 2010.

### 8. INDIAN GAMING/LICENSING STATISTICS

Licensing statistics for August 1, 2010 through August 31, 2010. Also included were the certifications for Oneida, Mohawk, Seneca Allegany, Seneca Buffalo and Seneca Niagara.

### F. FOLLOW-UP ON ITEMS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED

## 1. SUFFOLK REGIONAL OTB – AGREEMENT RENEWED FOR ONE YEAR – NAPPER TANDY'S - NORTHPORT

By letter dated July 29, 2010, Suffolk Regional OTB renewed the Qwik Bet Agreement with Napper Tandy's of Northport, Inc. d/b/a Napper Tandy's.

- SUFFOLK REGIONAL OTB AGREEMENT RENEWED FOR ONE YEAR MAIN ST. PUB (HMJV REST.) – KINGS PARK By letter dated July 29, 2010, Suffolk Regional OTB renewed the Qwik Bet Agreement with HMJV Rest. Inc. d/b/a Main Street Pub.
- SUFFOLK REGIONAL OTB AGREEMENT RENEWED FOR ONE YEAR SIT- N-SIP INN – SMITHTOWN By letter dated July 29, 2010, Suffolk Regional OTB renewed the Qwik Bet Agreement with Sit-N-Sip Inc. d/b/a Sit-N-Sip Inn.

The meeting adjourned at 11:53 a.m.